

## **Statement of Community Involvement**

#### October 2022

T. McCabe – Executive Director
Community and Environmental Services
Norfolk County Council
Martineau Lane
Norwich
NR1 2SG

www.norfolk.gov.uk



If you would need this document in large print, audio, braille, an alternative format or a different language please contact Norfolk County Council on 0344 800 8020 or 18001 0344 8020 (textphone) and we will do our best to help.

## Contents

1.	Introduction	4
	1.1 What is a Statement of Community Involvement?	4
	1.2 Who we will involve	
	1.3 Electronic Communications	5
	1.4 Data Protection	5
	1.5 The Impact of COVID-19 and emergency provisions	6
	1.6 Hard to Reach Groups	6
2.	Community Involvement in Planning Applications and related decisions	7
	2.1 Planning Applications	7
	2.1.1 Application types	7
	2.1.2 Planning Applications made by Norfolk County Council	8
	2.1.3 The Application Process	8
	2.1.4 Pre-Application Stage	8
	2.1.5 Application Stage	9
	2.1.6 How you can be involved	11
	2.1.7 Post Decision	12
	2.2 Other types of applications and submissions	13
	2.2.1 Submission of Details to Discharge a Planning Condition	13
	2.2.2 Minor and Non-material amendments	13
	2.2.3 EIA Screening and Scoping opinions	13
	2.2.4 Prior Approvals/Notification	14
	2.2.5 Certificate of Lawfulness of Existing Use or Development	14
	2.2.6 Certificate of Lawfulness of Proposed Use or Development	14
	2.2.7 Nationally Significant Infrastructure Projects (NSIPS)	14
	2.2.8 Listed Building Applications	15
3.	Community Involvement in Planning Policy Documents	15
	3.1 Minerals and Waste Local Plan	15
	3.1.1 Plan preparation Stage	16
	3.1.2 Submission Stage	16
	3.1.3 Public examination	17
	3.2 Other Development Plan documents	18
	3.2.1 Area Action Plans (AAPs)	18

3.2.2 Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs)	18
3.2.3 Neighbourhood Plans	18
3.3 Minerals and Waste Development Scheme (LDS)	19
3.3.1 Consultation and Notifications, what we will do	19
3.3.2 When you can be involved	19
3.3.3 How you can be involved	19
3.4 Statement of Community Involvement (SCI)	19
3.4.1 Consultation and Notifications, what we will do	19
3.4.2 When you can be involved	19
3.4.3 How you can be involved	19
4. Monitoring and Enforcement	20
4.1 Local Liaison Groups	20
4.2 Breaches of Planning Control	20
Appendix 1 - Consultees on Norfolk's Minerals and Waste Local Plan	21
Appendix 2 - Consultees on planning applications	23

## 1. Introduction

## 1.1 What is a Statement of Community Involvement?

- 1.1.1 The Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) sets out who, how and when we will engage with individuals and groups. It explains how you can comment on planning applications and how you can influence the content of future planning policy documents.
- 1.1.2 Norfolk County Council is the County Planning Authority (CPA) responsible for minerals and waste planning policy and determining planning applications for minerals, waste and the Council's own development, such as schools, libraries, fire stations and road schemes. Planning applications for other types of development are dealt with by the district and borough councils.
- 1.1.3 This means that our Statement of Community Involvement sets out how you can participate in:
  - Developing new Local Plans and planning policies that will influence the way future minerals and waste development is carried out in Norfolk
  - Determining planning applications for minerals, waste and County Council development.
  - Ongoing monitoring of mineral and waste facilities once they are up and running
- 1.1.4 It is a legal requirement for a planning authority to adopt an SCI. This adopted SCI ensures that we conform to the statutory requirements imposed on planning authorities and takes account of the governments planning practice guidance.

## 1.2 Who we will involve

- 1.2.1 Most consultations are open to all, but in order to participate in the consultation process individuals, communities and organisations need to be aware that it is taking place.
- 1.2.2 Details of who we will notify, in policy making and planning applications, is provided in the relevant sections of this document, but as a general principle we will seek to engage the following where they are directly or indirectly affected by the planning decision:
  - Individuals located in the immediate proximity to proposals
  - Local community groups, action groups and other voluntary organisations who have topic or local interests in a matter
  - Commercial organisations (such as minerals or waste companies and their trade bodies); and
  - Statutory bodies such as the Environment Agency, Natural England and district and parish councils who play a critical role ensuring the public voice is heard.

1.2.3 We will endeavour to identify all relevant parties, but we also recommend that voluntary and non-statutory bodies who want to be engaged directly contact us setting out the circumstances in which they would like to participate in the planning process.

#### 1.3 Electronic Communications

- 1.3.1 By the end of 2020 more than 95% of premises in Norfolk had access to Superfast Broadband. By Spring 2023 this will have increased further to over 97%. This will make it easier for people to access information on planning applications, minerals and waste planning policy documents, and make representations to the Council.
- 1.3.2 Electronic communication provides a quick, efficient and more sustainable way to circulate large documents. This is especially the case in Norfolk where, due to the rural nature of the county, it can be difficult for some individuals to access Local Authority offices.
- 1.3.3 The Planning Authority is committed to making the most appropriate use of electronic communication when undertaking consultation and notification activities. By default, email or the use of the internet will be the primary method of communication when engaging communities during the plan making process or consulting on planning applications.
- 1.3.4 Nevertheless, reliance solely on electronic communication will not always be appropriate. We will use site notices and letters where these are necessary to augment electronic communication channels, to ensure effective engagement.

### 1.4 Data Protection

- 1.4.1 The data you give us is only used to help us make the best decisions on planning matters and while we hold your data, it is kept secure. Planning is a statutory function, and any information is held on the lawful basis of public task (in accordance with the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended, related orders and regulations).
- 1.4.2 We hold a complete copy of all submissions including the names, addresses and contact details of those who have submitted a planning application, made a comment on a planning application, or responded to a consultation on planning policy. We do this so we can notify you about subsequent stages in the local plan process or the relevant planning application process such as amendments to the proposal, the outcome of the application and if an appeal is lodged against the application.
- 1.4.3 In accordance with the requirements of the government regulations on openness in local government decision making, we will hold the information for use in the planning process for a 4-year period following the decision. We also publish redacted versions of comments received without your signature, email and phone

number, to prevent fraud. Full details of how we manage your information are contained on the Planning Services privacy notice

# 1.5 The Impact of COVID-19 and emergency provisions

1.5.1 In light of the Covid-19 pandemic and in any comparable situation in the future, there may be circumstances when the Council will be unable to fully comply with this Statement of Community Involvement. This is particularly the case where consultation documents are usually placed in the Council offices for inspection. The Council is committed to effective consultation and communication with its residents, and in order to do this, some consultation methods may have to change temporarily. This is to protect both our community and staff in line with Government advice and guidance. Where we are unable to meet all of the requirements set out in this document, due to circumstances outside our control, but have made every reasonable effort to do so, we will consider that the conditions of the SCI have been met.

## 1.6 Hard to Reach Groups

- 1.6.1 For some people it may be difficult to get involved in the planning process for a wide range of reasons. These people are often referred to as belonging to "hard to reach groups". These groups may change over time but can include people who speak little or no English, people who have no access to the internet and people who have disabilities.
- 1.6.2 Where appropriate we will do the following to facilitate the involvement of "hard to reach" communities during the production of planning policy documents and the determination of planning applications:
  - We will assess the potential for impact on hard-to-reach groups, and so the need for involvement on the planning matter.
  - We will ensure our online documents and information can be accessed using assistive technologies.
  - We will provide a range of ways to contact the service.

# 2. Community Involvement in Planning Applications and related decisions

## 2.1 Planning Applications

### 2.1.1 Application types

Whom we engage, and how we engage the community and other parties on planning applications, will be determined by the scale and location of the application. The following section is set out so that you can understand what we will do based on the type of application and the stage in the planning process.

At a county level there are three main types of application based on the scale of what is being proposed. Other types of applications that we may receive are explained in section 2.2.

#### 2.1.1.1 Environmental Impact Assessment applications

A planning application which is accompanied by an Environmental Statement (known as an EIA application). EIA applications will be determined under the Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations 2017. These proposals have the greatest potential to impact the environment and are subject to the widest degree of public engagement. Consultation periods are also longer for these types of development.

#### 2.1.1.2 Major applications

A planning application which does not come under EIA applications and is defined as a major development according to the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedures) (England) Order 2015. Development involving any one or more of the following:

- The winning and working of minerals or the use of land for mineral-working deposits
- Waste development
- The provision of a building or buildings where the floor space to be created by the development is 1,000 square metres or more
- Development carried out on a site having an area of one hectare or more.

### 2.1.1.3 Minor applications

A planning application that is not covered by EIA or major applications as above.

## 2.1.2 Planning Applications made by Norfolk County Council

Some of the planning applications determined by the County Council relate to development to be carried out by the County Council, such as schools, fire stations, roads and libraries. How and who we engage will depend upon which of the above application types the proposal falls into. Many of NCC's own proposals are classified as "public service infrastructure", and provided they are not of such a scale to require an Environmental Impact Assessment, they are subject to shorter consultation periods.

## 2.1.3 The Application Process

Planning applications go through several stages. Typically, applications start with pre application advice and finish with the discharging of planning conditions, or a decision to refuse the application. In some cases, an appeal may be made by the applicant to the planning inspector.

This section sets out whom we engage and how we engage the community and other parties at each stage of the process, which will vary depending on the scale and the nature of the proposal.

- pre-application discussions (wherever possible and practical)
- submission of a planning application
- consultation, publicity and making comments on an application
- negotiation of potential amendments to a scheme where appropriate
- determining whether the application should be approved or refused, and if permission is given, what conditions should be imposed on the development
- making the results of decisions available.

## 2.1.4 Pre-Application Stage

### 2.1.4.1 Requests for Informal Pre-Application advice

Potential applicants are not required to engage with the Planning Authority or anyone else prior to submitting an application. However, the Authority strongly recommends that they do both for all types of planning applications. For a fee, NCC will provide informal pre-application advice to potential applicants from the Highway Authority, Lead Local Flood Authority and other services internal to the County Council. We will not consult the public as at this stage the pre-application proposal is confidential, as this is a fee-paying service the level of engagement with public bodies will be dependent upon the service procured by the would-be developer.

## 2.1.4.2 Requests for screening and scoping opinion under the EIA Regulations

This is not a legal requirement, but before potential applicants submit an application, they can formally request that the County Council determines whether or not the

planning application will be subject to the requirements of the Environmental Impact Assessment. This is referred to as a screening request.

Again, there is no legal requirement to submit a request to identify the scope of issues that should be included in such an Environmental Impact Assessment. This is referred to as a Scoping Opinion. Before giving either a screening or a scoping opinion, the authority will, as a minimum, consult a range of organisations set out on <a href="Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017">The Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017</a>, referred to as consultation bodies. We will not consult the general public or representative bodies, such as the Parish Council, at this stage.

## 2.1.5 Application Stage

#### 2.1.5.1 Validation

When an application is received, we will check to ensure that it contains all the relevant information needed to process the application. This is referred to as validation. Only when we are satisfied that we have all the necessary information will we formally register the application and publish it on our website. There are both national requirements and local information requirements. Norfolk County Council's local information requirements are detailed in the <a href="Local List for the Validation of Planning Applications">Local List for the Validation of Planning Applications</a>

#### 2.1.5.2 Notification and Consultation

Once we have validated the application, we will engage the following:

- Statutory consultees These are the bodies or persons set out in planning legislation which we must directly consult and who are obliged to respond. Consultation takes place via email notification and responses can range from a detailed written response to standing advice.
- **General Consultees** These are the bodies set out in planning legislation which we must directly consult but who are not obliged to respond, this includes parish and town councils. Consultation takes place via email notification in the case of a parish council, this is sent to the clerk.
- other appropriate groups These are the bodies and organisations which
  represent the interests of various groups and residents in the county. This
  type of consultee includes local businesses, industry representatives, local
  community and action groups etc. We will consult those which we consider to
  be appropriate to the particular planning application under consideration. We
  recommend that groups who want to engage in the planning system proactively contact us to agree the type of development and the locations on
  which they are interested, so we can ensure that they are consulted.
- **Direct neighbour notification** We will write directly to all postal addresses where known (dwellings and commercial properties) that immediately abut the application boundary (shown with a red line in the planning application site plan).

#### 2.1.5.3 Publicity on Planning applications

In addition to direct neighbour notification, writing to all properties immediately abutting the application boundary; we may also carry out indirect notification by publicising the application through erecting site notice(s) near the site of the planning application. For County Council's own development this will be carried out by the developer. As required by the legislation we will place press adverts in the Eastern Daily Press for all minerals and waste management development and all County Council development that:

- is a "major" or EIA development;
- would affect the setting of a listed building,
- would affect the character or appearance of a conservation area;
- · would affect a Public Right of Way (PROW); or
- constitutes a departure from the development plan

#### 2.1.5.4 Initial Consultation period

The period for public consultation used by Norfolk County Council will be that set out in the relevant legislation and regulations. The actual period varies slightly depending upon the nature and scale of the proposal.

Applications that are subject to the **Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA)** regulations will be consulted on for a period of 30 days.

For **minor** and **major** applications, the initial consultation period will be 21 days. This period includes weekends but excludes bank holidays. If a consultation period includes a bank holiday it will be extended accordingly.

Applications for **public service infrastructure** have an initial consultation period of 18 days. Unless they are also subject to the EIA Regulations, in which case the period will be 30 days.

As most consultations include several different publicity methods, there can be several different deadlines for consultation. For example, the press notice may appear in the paper several days after letters have been posted to, and received by, neighbours to the proposal site. In this case we will always take the longest deadline which can be found on our <u>eplanning website</u>. We recommend if you are worried that you may struggle to respond in time, you consult our website in the first instance, as you may have more time than you think. If after looking at the website, you are still concerned that you will not have enough time, please contact the team by email at <a href="mayp@norfolk.gov.uk">mayp@norfolk.gov.uk</a>, or contact the case officer by phone as per the consultation letter.

It is an important point to note that, although we set a consultation deadline, it does **not** mean that any comments received after the deadline will be ignored. The deadline is the date by which we guarantee we will have not determined the application, and so any comments made in that time will be considered. If you submit comments after the deadline date, but before we have determined the application, we will consider your comments.

#### 2.1.5.6 Re-consultation

Once the initial round of public consultation has finished, officers will consider the comments raised before coming to a view on the proposal. Ideally this view would be to approve or refuse the proposal, or to recommend to the Planning Committee that the application should be refused or approved.

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) asks that planning authorities work in a positive and creative way, including working proactively with applicants to secure developments that will improve the economic, social, and environmental conditions of the area.

In a number of cases, it is unclear following the initial consultation what the correct approach should be, and additional information is required before a view can be formed. In line with the requirement to work proactively with applicants, we will seek this information before coming to a view. Once we have received this additional information, we will reconsult through a second round of public consultation. Reconsultations are generally shorter and involve more limited notifications. Whom we consult will depend upon the issues in question. Our approach is to consult only with those parties that have raised concerns about that element of the proposal. The default period for consultation will be 14 days, or 30 days if the proposal is an EIA development. Notwithstanding the above, anyone can still make comments that will be considered, and our website will show the re-consultation deadline date.

#### 2.1.6 How you can be involved

#### 2.1.6.1 Availability of Documents

While the application remains undetermined and throughout the consultation period, applications, including all the documents submitted with them, are available for inspection and to download from the County Council's <u>e-planning website</u>. To access a specific application please use the search criteria. It is best to use the site reference number which will be shown on all notices and correspondence we produce, but if you do not have the reference number you can narrow your search by using the district and parish fields.

Please note all comments made in response to public consultations can also be viewed on the website. All documents will be subject to redaction to remove any sensitive personal information, such health status, and contact data such as signatures, email addresses and telephone numbers, to prevent fraud. Individual names and addresses will be retained. Unredacted copies of documents are available for inspection upon request.

While the use of computers, tablets and mobile phones is now widespread, we appreciate that not everyone has access to the internet or has the confidence to navigate or access the documents online. The County Council provides internet access at its main offices, County Hall and all public libraries. If you wish to use these facilities, please contact the planning department by email at mawp@norfolk.gov.uk, or contact the case office by phone, or visit your local library.

Once you have seen the application you can send us your comments:

- Online Planning Search (eplanning.norfolk.gov.uk)
- Email mawp@norfolk.gov.uk
- Post Head of Planning, Planning Services, Norfolk County Council, County Hall, Martineau Lane, Norwich, NR1 2DH

Those who wish to submit a petition or e-petition rather than an individual response should check the NCC website for the current corporate Petitions Policy Petitions - Norfolk County Council

You will receive acknowledgement once your comment has been received. You will also be notified as an interested party should the application be decided at the Planning Regulatory Committee, and once the application has been determined.

#### 2.1.6.2 Committee Reports

The <u>Council Constitution</u> sets out when decisions can be delegated to officers for determination and when they will be decided at committee by members. When a case is to be considered by committee, the report will be published on our website 7 days before the committee sites, and everyone who has commented on the application will be written to informing them that the case is to be considered by the planning committee. Letters will also explain how to register to speak at the committee. Please note that you if you do not register by the stated deadline, you may not be given the opportunity to speak at the committee. It is not a requirement to have made a previous comment on a proposal in order to speak. Full details of how the committee runs can be found in Section 26 of our constitution.

#### 2.1.7 Post Decision

A planning permission is only deemed to be granted once the decision notice is dispatched to the applicant. This usually this takes place by email as soon as practicably possible after the committee has made its recommendation. We will publish the decision online, both on our website and the district council's website. At this stage there are no further community engagement exercises. Following the decision, an applicant has 6 months to appeal against a refusal to grant planning permission, and if the application was approved, 6 months to appeal against any conditions we have imposed on the permission. There is currently no right of appeal for third parties.

If an appeal is lodged, we will forward all documents, including previous consultation comments, to the Planning Inspectorate.

## 2.2 Other types of applications and submissions

As the County Planning Authority for Norfolk, we also process several other types of submission or applications. These are set out below along with the level of engagement we undertake in each case. It should be noted that there are no statutory requirements to engage the general public on these matters, however we will from time to time carry out some consultation. The level of consultation and the reasons for doing so are also set out below.

## 2.2.1 Submission of Details to Discharge a Planning Condition

If an application is granted, it is common practice to attach conditions. Conditions attached to a planning permission impose restrictions and/or require the submission of further details before and/or once a development is implemented. If conditions are imposed on a planning permission, this is an application seeking approval of such details.

Engagement method: Public consultation is not normally undertaken. Statutory consultees, and other bodies and organisations, are consulted if they requested a particular condition or are likely to have comments. The decision is sent to the relevant district/borough/city council, parish/town council and local member, if appropriate.

#### 2.2.2 Minor and Non-material amendments

An applicant can request a minor amendment or a non-material (inconsequential) variation to a scheme (which does not raise any new issues for consideration) after planning permission has been granted.

Engagement method: Public consultation is not normally undertaken due to the scale of the amendment. Statutory consultees, and other bodies and organisations, are consulted if the case officer decides it is relevant. The decision is sent to the relevant district/borough/city council, parish/town council and local member, if appropriate.

### 2.2.3 EIA Screening and Scoping opinions

These are opinions issued in respect of an Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA). Screening Opinions seek the County Council's opinion as to if an EIA is required for a particular proposal/development. Scoping Opinions seek to advise on what information is required to be supplied in the Environmental Statement should it be considered an EIA is necessary.

Engagement method: Public consultation is not normally undertaken. Statutory consultees, and other bodies and organisations, are consulted if the case officer decides it is relevant. The decision is sent to the relevant district/borough/city council, parish/town council and local member, if appropriate.

### 2.2.4 Prior Approvals/Notification

Not all development requires a planning permission. The Government have in effect given landowner planning permission to carry put certain developments without the need to obtain planning permission from the local planning authority, these are generally referred to as "permitted development" rights. The details of what you can do under these rights are contained in the <a href="Town and Country Planning">Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development Order) (England) Regulations 2015</a>. In a number of cases, anyone wishing to exercise these rights is required to seek prior approval from the planning authority. In these cases, considerations are limited to specific criteria and do not involve an assessment of the planning merits of the proposal. As a result, public consultation is not normally undertaken.

## 2.2.5 Certificate of Lawfulness of Existing Use or Development

These applications are made when an applicant wishes to establish whether a use or development that they are already carrying out is lawful.

Engagement method: As it is the applicant suggesting an existing use, we may consult in an attempt to ascertain alternative views or contrary evidence – classing the application as major for development and minor for County Council projects. Statutory consultees, and other bodies and organisations, are consulted if the case officer decides it is relevant. The decision is sent to the relevant district/borough/city council, parish/town council and local member, if appropriate.

## 2.2.6 Certificate of Lawfulness of Proposed Use or Development

This application is a method to establish whether a use or development (which has not yet occurred) needs planning permission.

Engagement method: Public consultation is only undertaken in exceptional circumstances. Statutory consultees and other bodies / organisations are consulted if the case officer decides it is relevant. The decision is sent to the relevant district / borough / city council, parish / town council and local member, if appropriate. This is purely a legal interpretation of the General Permitted Development Order so the merits of the case are normally not relevant.

## 2.2.7 Nationally Significant Infrastructure Projects (NSIPS)

The Planning Act 2008, (the 2008 Act), introduced a development consent process for Nationally Significant Infrastructure Projects (NSIPs). NSIPs are usually large-scale developments (relating to energy, transport, water, or waste) which require a type of consent known as a 'development consent order' (DCO). The final decision on granting a DCO rests with the Secretary of State for that field, based on advice from planning inspectors – known as the 'examining authority'. Therefore, Norfolk County Council are not the determining authority.

Engagement method: If you wish to participate in the examination of an application for development consent for a national infrastructure project, you first need to register with the Planning Inspectorate and make a relevant representation about the application.

### 2.2.8 Listed Building Applications

An application for Listed Building Consent under the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 is required where an applicant proposes works that would affect a Listed Building or its setting. Whilst Norfolk County Council are not the determining authority, these types of applications are administered by the County Council.

Engagement method: Consultation with statutory consultees, other bodies, organisations and members of the public is undertaken as set out in paragraph 2.1.5. Representations received are forwarded to the relevant district/borough/city council who will determine the application. In certain cases, an application will be referred to the National Planning Casework Unit (NPU) on behalf of the Secretary of State for determination.

# 3. Community Involvement in Planning Policy Documents

## 3.1 Minerals and Waste Local Plan

Norfolk County Council has a full set of adopted Development Plan Documents (DPDs) which together make up the County's current Minerals and Waste Local Plan. They are:

- Norfolk Core Strategy and Minerals and Waste Development Management Policies DPD (September 2011)
- Minerals Site Specific Allocations DPD (October 2013 and amendments December 2017)
- Waste Site Specific Allocations DPD (October 2013)

The Minerals and Waste Development Scheme (LDS) details the arrangements for monitoring and reviewing the Local Plan. The key stages in the production of a development plan document are listed below and the following sections detail what we do at each stage and when and how you can engage in each stage of the process.

- Plan Preparation stage (Regulation 18)
- Submission stage (Regulations 19 & 20)
- Public Examination stage (Regulation 24)
- Adoption stage (Regulation 26)

### 3.1.1 Plan preparation Stage

#### 3.1.1.1 Consultation and Notifications

We will notify specific, general, and other consultation bodies as the County Planning Authority consider appropriate (see Appendix 1) of the consultation by email or letter.

We will make the Local Plan documentation available to view online on our digital consultation platform as part of any consultation. The digital consultation platform has a range of functionalities, such as allowing stakeholders to view and comment on documents and maps.

Depending upon the subject matter of the Local Plan, we may employ further engagement techniques deemed appropriate such as:

- Notify, by email or letter, the occupants of properties located within 250 metres of a proposed site boundary.
- Issue press releases
- Hold public exhibitions or meetings
- Social Media the council will promote planning policy consultations on its social media platforms such as Twitter and Facebook.

#### 3.1.1.2 When you can be involved

During the Plan Preparation stage, we will hold formal consultation exercises which will run for a minimum period of 6 weeks. At the time of writing, we have already held two such exercises for the current emerging Minerals and Waste Local Plan, in 2018 and 2019, and we do not currently propose to hold any further rounds of plan preparation consultations. Comments received after the closure of the consultation period will not be considered.

### 3.1.1.3 How you can be involved

You can view and comment on draft local plan documents online on the County Council's website <a href="https://norfolk.oc2.uk/">https://norfolk.oc2.uk/</a>. If you do not have access to the internet, where possible, we can provide access for you via the Council's principal offices and local public libraries. At this stage you can comment on any aspect of the proposals under consideration or suggest alternative approaches. All responses must be submitted to the County Council in writing, either by email, letter or via the econsultation website.

### 3.1.2 Submission Stage

#### 3.1.2.1 Consultation and Notifications

We will make Submission Documents and the statement of the representation's procedure available for inspection in accordance with Regulation 35.

We will send the following information to general and specific consultation bodies invited to make representations under Regulation 19:

- A statement of the representation's procedure.
- A statement of the fact that the Submission Documents are available for inspection and of the places and times at which they can be inspected

#### 3.1.2.2 When you can be involved

The formal representation period will be for no less than 6 weeks and will take place after the submission document has been approved by Cabinet and before submission to the SoS. Only comments submitted during the published representation period will be accepted.

#### 3.1.2.3 How you can be involved

You can make representations about the proposed Development Plan Document which we intend to submit to the SoS. The matters on which comments can be made at this stage of the plan making process are limited. You can make representations on issues of the legal compliance and soundness. The tests of soundness are set out in the <a href="National Planning Policy Framework">National Planning Policy Framework</a>. All representations must be submitted to the County Council in writing, either by email, letter or via the econsultation website. In your representation you should provide all the information you wish the inspector to consider and also state whether you want to take part inperson in any future hearings. Only parties requesting changes to the plan have a right to speak at hearings.

#### 3.1.3 Public examination

#### 3.1.3.1 Consultation and Notifications

At least 6 weeks before the examination commences, we will publish details of the examination on our website, and notify people who made representations of the date, location, and contact details of the independently appointed programme officer. We will also notify those who have made representations of any pre-examination hearing and details of the full examination when they become available.

#### 3.1.3.2 When you can be involved

In the event that the inspector invites additional written submission prior to the examination you will be given 2-3 weeks to submit any additional information and a further 2-3 weeks to read any information submitted by other parties.

### 3.1.3.3 How you can be involved

If you have made a representation on the submission version of the Development Plan Document, you will be invited to attend any pre-examination hearing if one is being held and the subsequent examination itself. Administration of the examination is undertaken by an independent programme officer who can advise you on the detailed examination timetable. If you want to speak at the examination, you will need to state this in your representation and let the programme officer know. As stated above, only those parties requesting a modification to the plan have a right to

speak at an examination. However, the inspector does have discretion to allow other parties to speak.

## 3.2 Other Development Plan documents

## 3.2.1 Area Action Plans (AAPs)

Currently the County Council has not identified any areas for which an area action plan would be suitable. If work on the Minerals and Waste Local Plan identifies a need for an area action plan or plans, then details would be included in an amended 'Norfolk Minerals and Waste Development Scheme'. Area action plans are development plan documents and any of the methods of community involvement set out in section 3 of this SCI are applicable.

### 3.2.2 Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs)

Currently, the County Council has no plans to produce any supplementary planning documents to provide further guidance on issues or policies in the Minerals and Waste Local Plan. If work on the Minerals and Waste Local Plan identifies a need for an SPD, then details would be included in an amended 'Norfolk Minerals and Waste Development Scheme'.

Community involvement on any SPDs will, as a minimum, seek to ensure that the level of community involvement required by Government Regulations takes place. In most cases an SPD will not require a sustainability appraisal. If the County Council decides to produce an SPD, the methods of community involvement set out in section 3 of this SCI are applicable and the County Council will consult those consultees shown in Appendix 1. An SPD must be adopted by council resolution.

## 3.2.3 Neighbourhood Plans

Minerals and waste planning matters are outside the remit of Neighbourhood Plans. The first point of contact for those communities interested in preparing a neighbourhood plan is the local planning authority. In Norfolk this means the district or borough council or the Broads Authority.

## 3.3 Minerals and Waste Development Scheme (LDS)

The Minerals and Waste Development Scheme provides the timetable for reviewing, updating and adopting the new Local Plan. It will have an indication as to when the public engagement exercises (both formally and informally) will take place. Looking forward, the scheme will highlight when we expect the final version of the plan to be published, examined and adopted.

#### 3.3.1 Consultation and Notifications, what we will do

There is no legal requirement for public consultation or notification on revisions to the scheme. Any proposed changes to the scheme will be considered by Cabinet before adoption. This means proposals will be published at least one week before consideration. The <u>LDS</u> will be published on the County Council's website

### 3.3.2 When you can be involved

The LDS will be monitored on a regular basis and reviewed as required.

### 3.3.3 How you can be involved

The Council will accept representations seeking changes to the LDS at any time. These will be considered at the time of the LDS review. Members of the public who are residents in Norfolk may ask questions of the Cabinet through the chair through following the <a href="#">Ask a question to a committee - Norfolk County Council</a> procedure.

## 3.4 Statement of Community Involvement (SCI)

## 3.4.1 Consultation and Notifications, what we will do

There is no legal requirement for local planning authorities to consult when reviewing and updating the SCI. Any proposed changes to the SCI will be considered by Cabinet before adoption. This means proposals will be published at least one week before consideration. The adopted <u>Statement of Community Involvement</u> will be published on the County Council's website.

## 3.4.2 When you can be involved

The SCI will be monitored on a regular basis and reviewed at least every five years.

## 3.4.3 How you can be involved

The Council will accept representations seeking changes to the SCI at any time. These will be considered at the time of the SCI review. Members of the public who are residents in Norfolk may ask questions of the Cabinet through the chair by following the Ask a question to a committee procedure.

## 4. Monitoring and Enforcement

## **4.1 Local Liaison Groups**

Once a development has been approved, officers will regularly monitor the site to ensure that the development complies with the planning permission and any conditions that have been imposed. Because of the nature of minerals and waste development, local liaison group are quite often beneficial. We believe they provide an excellent forum for all stakeholders to influence the ongoing development of a site. Where there is public support for a group and a willingness from the operator, we will provide officers to attend the group meetings. Membership of these groups tend to vary but generally consist of elected members from parish, town, district and county councils along with our officers, and officers from other regulatory bodies such as the Environment Agency. If you want to get involved in setting up a liaison group or joining an existing one you can contact us in the first instance, and we can put you in touch with the relevant organisations.

## 4.2 Breaches of Planning Control

Instances where operators carry out development without the benefit of planning permission, or where planning permissions exists, carry it out contrary to the permission, are referred to as breaches of planning control. Where you believe there has been a breach you can report using any of the following methods.

- Email <u>mawp@norfolk.gov.uk</u>
- Post Head of Planning, Planning Services, Norfolk County Council, County Hall, Martineau Lane, Norwich, NR1 2DH
- Telephone during office hours 0344 800 8020

We will respond to any complaints in accordance with our <u>Enforcement Plan</u>. We will not ask or expect you undertake any form of surveillance of activities. We may however, depending upon the nature of allegations, ask you make a formal statement. Investigations into alleged breaches of planning control can be highly sensitive and while we notify complaints on key stages and of the overall outcome of our investigations, we are unable to provide you with our detailed findings.

# Appendix 1 - Consultees on Norfolk's Minerals and Waste Local Plan

Please note, this list is not exhaustive and also relates to successor bodies where reorganisations occur.

#### Specific consultation bodies

**Coal Authority** 

**Environment Agency** 

Historic England

East of England Local Government Association

Natural England

The Secretary of State for Transport

Parish and town councils in Norfolk

District and borough councils in Norfolk

County, district, borough, town and parish councils adjoining Norfolk

**Broads Authority** 

Relevant electricity and gas companies

Relevant sewerage and water undertakers

Relevant telecommunications companies

Homes England

Norfolk Police Authority

#### **General Consultation Bodies**

- (a) Voluntary bodies some or all of whose activities benefit any part of the authority's area;
- (b) Bodies which represent the interests of different racial, ethnic or national groups in the authority's area.
- (c) Bodies which represent the interests of different religious groups in the authority's area;
- (d) Bodies which represent the interests of disabled persons in the authority's area;
- (e) Bodies which represent the interests of persons carrying on business in the authority's area.

#### **Other Consultation Bodies**

Campaign to Protect Rural England

**Civil Aviation Authority** 

Country Land and Business Association

Countryside projects

Defence Infrastructure Organisation

**Environmental Services Association** 

Equality and Human Rights Commission

Friends of the Earth

Greenpeace

Health and Safety Executive

#### Page 22 of 23

Minerals and waste operators

Minerals and waste trade associations

**Mineral Products Association** 

**National Farmers Union** 

**National Highways** 

**National Trust** 

**Network Rail** 

Norfolk Coast Partnership

Norfolk Association of Local Councils

Norfolk Farming and Wildlife Advisory Group

Norfolk County Council Historic Environment Service

Norfolk Rural Community Council

Norfolk Wildlife Trust

Norfolk's Clinical Commissioning Groups

Norwich International Airport

Abellio Greater Anglia

Planning agents who work for the minerals and waste industry

The Ramblers' Association

Royal Society for the Protection of Birds

Visit East Anglia

Visit Norfolk

#### **Duty to Cooperate bodies**

(as specified in the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended by the Localism Act 2011)

**Environment Agency** 

Natural England

**Local Nature Partnerships** 

Mayor of London (where applicable)

**Civil Aviation Authority** 

Homes and Communities Agency

**Clinical Commissioning Groups** 

The NHS Commissioning Board

Historic England

The Office of Rail Regulation

**National Highways** 

Transport for London (where applicable)

**Integrated Transport Authorities** 

**Highway Authorities** 

Local Enterprise Partnerships

Marine Management Organisation

**Local Planning Authorities** 

## Appendix 2 - Consultees on planning applications

Community involvement will include notification of the district, town and parish councils, and County Councillors and any relevant statutory bodies or consultees which could include one or more of the following:

Bus Service Enhanced Partnership Improvement Board

**Civil Aviation Authority** 

Defence Infrastructure Organisation

Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs

**Environment Agency** 

**Equality and Human Rights Commission** 

Friends of the Earth

Forest Enterprise (England)

Health and Safety Executive

**Highway Authority** 

Historic Buildings and Monuments Commission for England (Historic England)

Lead Local Flood Authority

**National Farmers Union** 

**National Highways** 

**National Trust** 

Natural England

**Network Rail** 

Norfolk Wildlife Trust

Norfolk's Clinical Commissioning Groups

The Ramblers' Association

Relevant electricity and gas companies

Relevant sewerage and water undertakers

Relevant telecommunications companies

Royal Society for the Protection of Birds

Secretary of State for Transport

Sport England